
 
Telephone Enquiries: Holly Townsley, Democratic Services Officer, Democratic 
Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  holly.townsley@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 13 June 2025 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 
Monday, 23 June 2025 at 4.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Bernard Dawson MBE 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Noordad Aziz 
 
Councillors Peter Edwards, Danny Cassidy, Heather Anderson and Mike Booth 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
The Minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 24th of February 2025 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record.  
 
Recommended – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record.  
 

3.   Risk Management Monitoring Report  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
To inform Audit Committee of: the outcome of the Strategic, Generic and Operational 
Risk Registers review. 
 
Recommended – That the committee note the following;  

 the content of the report;  

 and changes and additions to the Strategic Risk Register and the 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2025 - 2026 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

Operational Risk Register. 
 

4.   Annual Internal Audit Report & Opinion  (Pages 19 - 46) 
 

To inform and update Audit Committee on the Annual Internal Audit Report and 
Audit Opinion for 2024/25 and to give details on the performance of the Internal 
Audit Team and final outturn position for 2024/25 
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

5.   Internal Audit Plan Progress Update  (Pages 47 - 50) 
 

To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period March 2025 – 
May 2025 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues 
were. 

 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

6.   Follow Ups Update  (Pages 51 - 56) 
 

To inform members of the outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously 
agreed action plans for completed audit reports. The follow-ups detailed 
within this report are those carried out during the period March 2025 to 
May 2025. 

 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

7.   Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme  (Pages 57 - 70) 
 

To inform members of the current position with the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) which sets out how we manage any of the 
Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS) that are not compliant, thus ensuring 
conformance with the GIAS overall. 
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

8.   External Auditors Update   
 
Verbal Update 
 

 
 



 

 
1 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 24th February, 2025 

 
Present:  Councillor Bernard Dawson MBE (in the Chair), Councillors 

Ethan Rawcliffe (Vice Chair), Vanessa Alexander, Peter Edwards, 
Danny Cassidy, Heather Anderson and Kimberley Whitehead 
 

Apologies Councillor Heather Anderson 

  

 
345 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 
Councillor Heather Anderson sent Apologies and Councillor Kimberley Whitehead 
Substituted. 
 

346 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Audit Committee held on the 9th of December 2024 were submitted 
for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record. 
 

347 Audit Plan Progress Report 
 
Mr Mark Beard Head of Audit & Investigations gave an update on the Audit position for the 
period December 2024 to February 2025. 
 
Mr Beard informed the committee that the prediction of out-turn for 2024/25 of 89.79% is 
likely to be higher due to high levels of staff leave taken in November.  
 
Mr Beard highlighted 5 areas in the report: 
 Insurance Arrangements:- Substantial Assurance 
1 Action was agreed upon to address the uncertainty around accurate information being 
provided by Heads of Service.  
 Rent Reviews:- Substantial Assurance 
2 Actions were agreed upon to address highlighted weaknesses and inconsistent 
applications of controls. 
 Environmental Protection:- Substantial Assurance 
2 Actions were agreed upon to address existing strategies and agreements which should 
be updated as best practice. 
 Fleet Management:- Comprehensive Assurance 
No Actions. 
 Planning Refunds:- Substantial Assurance 
1 Action was agreed upon to address potential risk within the internal controls.  
 
Members queried if there were any associated time frames linked to the above mentioned 
actions in the report. 
Mr Beard confirmed that time scales are in place and agreed with heads of service but that 
these time frames will be different for each service according to the severity of the issue 
and level of risk it creates. 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Once the recommended actions have been completed they will then be included in the 
Audit Follow up Report for the committee to review. 
 
Resolved – Members noted the report. 
 

348 Follow Up Progress Report 
 
Mr Mark Beard Head of Audit & Investigations gave an update on the Follow-Up report for 
the period November 2024 to February 2025. 
Only one Item was raised in the report which was Business Continuity. 
This item has been implemented as per the report. 
 
The committee asked how frequently Business Continuity plans were reviewed. 
Mr Beard informed this is done at least once a year if not twice depending on the service. 
 
Resolved – Members noted the report. 
 

349 Audit Plan 2025/2026 
 
Mr Mark Beard Head of Audit & Investigations presented the Internal Audit Plan for the 
financial year 2025/2026. 
Mr Beard explained that the Internal Audit Plan is the work programme for the team for the 
year and is monitored on a monthly basis. 
This is in line with guidance from both the Chartered Institute of Auditors and the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy. 
This allows the Head of Audit & Investigations to react to changes and, if necessary, to 
revise the Audit Plan to incorporate these changes. 
 
Mr Beard highlighted that 6 items had been removed from the Audit Plan due to either the 
funding scheme having come to an end or the work referenced having been completed. 
Similarly 6 items have been added to the plan reflecting new areas of work for the authority 
or risks within the risk registers. These items have been risk assessed and scored on the 9 
point matrix as usual.  
 
Mr Beard discussed the report with the committee and informed of the changes which had 
been made to the plan from the previous year and the time lines predicated including 
contingency time to allow for flexibility if any new items are added to the plan throughout the 
year. 
 
Resolved – The Audit Committee Approved the Internal Audit Plan for the Financial 
Year 2025/2026 by unanimous decision.  
 

350 Statement of Accounts 2023/2024 
 
Miss Jody Spencer-Anforth Head of Finance presented the Statement of Accounts 
2023/2024 to the committee. 
Miss Spencer-Anforth confirmed that the accounts had been prepared in line with the 
CIPFA code of guidance and following the backstop dates presented in the report. 
The statement of accounts for the year 2023/2024 had a deadline of the 28th of February 
2025. 
 
Resolved – The Audit Committee voted by unanimous decision to approve the 
following:  

1) Statement of accounts for 2023/2024 and agreed to the Chair of the committee 
signing the statement of accounts.  

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

2) The Committee also approved the letter of representation for 2023/2024, 
 

351 Update on External Audits 
 
Miss Jody Spencer-Anforth Head of Finance presented the External Audit Update to the 
committee. 
Miss Spencer-Anforth clarified to the committee that the recommendations and weaknesses 
highlighted by the external audit reports have been the same for a number of years due to 
the backlog of accounts.  
Miss Spencer-Anforth informed the committee that these items have been worked on over a 
number of years and we have largely addressed the points raised over the years. 
 
Resolved – The committee noted the information provided in the reports.  
 

352 Application of Accounting Policies 
 
Miss Jody Spencer-Anforth Head of Finance presented the Accounting policies to be used 
to prepare the Statement of Accounts 2024/2025. 
Miss Spencer-Anforth informed the committee that these principles are largely the same as 
in previous years but some changes have been made to adhere to new accounting 
standards in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice update. 
 
Resolved – The committee noted the policies in Appendix 1. 
 

353 External Audit - Annual Report 
 
Mr Daniel Watson presented the report to the committee and explained that the report is 
very similar to the last few years report due to the backlog of audits. 
The report summarises the work of the External Auditors and the Disclaimed Opinion given 
to the 2023/2024 accounts. 
 
Mr Watson informed the committee that the weaknesses highlighted have been carried over 
from previous years and hopefully with the next set of accounts these will be able to be 
reviewed.  
Similarly the Value for Money arrangements weaknesses have been carried through from 
2021/2022. 
 
Resolved – Members noted the report. 
 

354 External Audit - Audit Strategy and Completion Report 
 
Mr Daniel Watson presented the report to the committee and explained how the statutory 
backstop dates, introduced by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024, 
have impacted the completion of the work done by the external auditors and the reporting 
consequences.  
Mr Watson explained to the committee that due to the backstop arrangements external 
audit have not been able to complete all of the work necessary to issue a detailed audit 
plan and provide an opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Resolved – Members noted the report. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 6



 
Page 1 of 11 

‘  

REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 23 June 2025 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Vanessa Alexander - Resources and 
Council Operations  

REPORT AUTHOR: Susan Gardner (Policy & Scrutiny Officer)  

TITLE OF REPORT: Risk Management Monitoring Report 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

To inform Audit Committee of: 

 the outcome of the Strategic, Generic and Operational Risk Registers review;  
 

2. Recommendation 
 

That Audit Committee note: 

 the content of the report;  

 and changes and additions to the Strategic Risk Register and the Operational Risk Register. 
 

3. Background 
 
Report Background: 

 The Councils mission statement in regards to Risk Management is as follows: 
o The Council is committed to adopting best practices in the identification, evaluation, 

and cost-effective control of risks to ensure that they are eliminated or reduced to an 
acceptable level.  It is acknowledged that some risks will always exist and will never 
be eliminated.  All employees must understand the nature of risk and accept 
responsibility for risk associated with their area of work.  In doing this they will receive 
the necessary support, assistance and commitment from Senior Management and 
Members. 

 The Council’s risk management policy is a long-term commitment and is an inherent part of 
good management and governance practices.   

 The Audit Committee is responsible for the review and monitoring of the Council’s risk 
management arrangements. 

 The Council has adopted the following definition produced by the Institute of Risk  
Management, which states:- 

o Risk Management is the identification, measurement, control and financing of risks 
which threaten the existence, the assets, the earnings of the personnel of an 
organisation, the services it provides, the achievement of its corporate priorities or 
which may cause undue harm to the public. 

 
Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 
Page 2 of 11 

 
The Risk Management Process: 

 Risk management must not be the responsibility of just a few specialists.  It must be a 
primary management responsibility for all managers and supervisors and must be a 
consideration for all employees. 

 Risk assessments are about asking:- 
o What can go wrong 
o What is the likelihood of it going wrong 
o What is the impact should it go wrong 
o What can be done to eliminate the threat 
o What should be done to reduce the threat’s likelihood or impact 

 This 5-point approach can be applied to decisions made every working day, at all levels of 
the Council.   

 The Council risk assessment scoring is based on the guidance of the Institute of Risk 
Management: 

o 3 being a high risk; 
o 2 being a medium risk; 
o 1 being a low risk.   
o The definitions of High, Medium and Low are also based on the guidance of the 

Institute of Risk Management and aid assessing Impact and Likelihood. 
 

 
Assessing Likelihood 

 

Evaluation Description (one or more applies) Level 

LOW Unlikely to happen  
Has happened rarely/never before 
Loss-causing circumstances rarely encountered 

1 

MEDIUM Likely to happen 
Likely to happen at some point over the next 1 to 2 years 
Loss-causing circumstances encountered few times a year 

2 

HIGH Very likely to happen 
Regular occurrence 
Loss-causing circumstances frequently encountered daily/weekly 

3 

 
 

Assessing Impact 
 

Evaluation Description (one or more applies) Level 

LOW Minor injury/ill health 
Minimal financial loss of less than £500,000 
Minor disruption to provision of service for short time  
Adverse local media coverage 

1 

MEDIUM Serious disabling injury/ill health 
Financial Loss in excess of £500,000 
Significant disruption to provision of service  
Adverse, significant local media coverage and possible national 
coverage 

2 

HIGH Very serious disabling injury/ill health 
Financial Loss in excess of £2 million 
Non-delivery of service for a significant length of time 
Adverse international media coverage 

3 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
Page 3 of 11 

 

 
 
Types of Risk: 

 The Corporate Risk Register outlines the key strategic risks facing the Council and the 
controls currently in place to respond to these risks. 

 The Councils Risk Register is summarised as follows: 
o 17 Generic risks - (1 high 4 medium and 12 low) 
o 68 Operational risks - (0 high 22 medium 46 low) 
o 22 Strategic risks     - (3 high  10 medium and 9 low) 

 
 
4. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

To enable Audit Committee to: 

 Comment and note the amendments to the Strategic, Generic and Operational Risk 
Registers since the submission of the last risk management report (December 2024); 

 
 

5. Changes to the Strategic Risk Register 

There have been four major changes made to the Strategic Risk Register as follows: 
 
Deletion of Strategic Risk URN 2041 (High) due to the similarity of Strategic Risk URN 2045.  
Both risks have now been merged into Strategic Risk 2045 as shown below.   
 

Area Change Reasons Risk Rating 
With 
Controls 

 MERGED STRATEGIC RISKS – 2041 with 2045 

Strategic 

Financial 
Risk  

 

2045 

 

 
From 1 April 2026 the Council as a 
waste collection authority is required to 
start collecting food waste each week 
from every household in the Borough.   
 
The Council continues to work with LCC 

 
Risk is high because there is no 
agreement in place for waste 
disposal with LCC. 

 

 The Council has ordered 
40,000 kitchen caddies (7 litre) 

High 

Page 9



 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 

to find a suitable waste transfer solution 
to manage food waste disposal. 
 
Risk Owner 
Head of Environmental Services 
 

and 40,000 kerbside caddies 
(23 litre) to be delivered to 
each household in the 
Borough by March 2026. 

 The Council has ordered 9 
new Dennis Eagles Duo 
vehicles to facilitate food 
waste collections.  These 
vehicles will be delivered in 
March 2026. 

 The Council has received new 
burdens funding from Defra 
for the purchase of food waste 
caddies and vehicles.  The 
Council has also received 
transitional funding for the 
delivery of food waste caddies 
and to fund communication 
activities to residents about 
food waste collections. 
 

 

 REDUCED STRATEGIC RISK   

 

Strategic 

Financial 

Risk 

 

2036 

 
The acquisition of key town centre 
buildings and delivery of a £22 million 
regeneration project within Accrington 
Town Centre (URN 36) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Risk Owner 
Head of Regeneration and Housing  

 
Risk reduced from High to 
Medium 
 
Current estimated cost plan 
produced by MAC/RIHBELL 
highlights project can be 
delivered within budget; and 
Phase 2 (fit out) tenders due 
back June 2025 which will 
confirm total cost to finish 
project delivery and programme 
completion date. 
 

Medium 

 NEW STRATEGIC RISK - 2048 

Strategic 
Financial 

Risk 

 

2048 

 

 
Failure to successfully adopt the 
Hyndburn Local Plan which was 
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in 
March 2025. 
 
Risk Owner 
Chief Planning & Transportation Officer 

 
Suitably qualified staff are being 
recruited as locums and there is 
recruitment of temporary staff.  
A Deputy Head of Planning 
Policy role has been 
established.   

 
There is engagement of 
professional consultants and 
legal advice where necessary. 
 
There is a recruitment of a 
Programme Officer.  
 

Medium 

 CHANGE IN WORDING OF STRATEGIC RISK 2047 AND RISK RAISED TO 
MEDIUM 

Strategic 

Financial 
Risk 

 
Increased cost of programme timescale 
for the delivery of the three LUF project 
interventions in Accrington Town Centre. 

 
Programme Impact – Informed 
funders that competition date on 
Market Chambers will now be 

Raised from 
low to  

Medium Risk 
 

Page 10



 
Page 5 of 11 

 

2047 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Risk Owner 
Chief Executive 
 
 

Q3/Q4 financial year 2025/26, 
due to time taken to undertake 
the CPO process. Further 
quarterly monitoring reports 
confirm completion date for 
Burtons Chambers & Market 
Hall now on a similar timescale. 
• Cost estimate Current 
estimated Cost Plan produced 
by MAC/RIHBELL highlights 
project can be delivered within 
budget. Phase 2 (fit-out) tenders 
due back June 2025 which will 
confirm total cost to finish 
project delivery and programme 
completion date.  
• Funding Impact – Once the 
fixed price cost Phase 2 works 
have been confirmed, the 
Council will need to decide if it 
can provide any additional 
funding to enable any additional 
works / future maintenance 
works not within the original 
LUF bid (but would be advisable 
whilst the buildings are not 
operational) to be undertaken. 

 Funders confirmed LUF 
spending now approved up to 
31 March 2026 

 

Increased 
costs. 

 
 
6. Changes to the Operational Risk Register 

There have been 5 major changes made to the Operational Risk Register (below) and a 
number of minor changes (6).  

 

Area Change Reasons Risk Rating 
With 
Controls 

 REDUCED OPERATIONAL RISK 

60 

Operational  

Physical 

 

 

 

 
Theft or damage to vehicles and 
equipment. 
 
 
Risk Owner 
Head of Environmental Services 

 
There has been security 
improvements at the Willows 
Lane depot with a restricted 
gate access installed in 2025.   

 

Reduced 
from High to 

Medium 

 TWO DELETED OPERATIONAL RISKS – 36 AND 122 

36 

Operational  

Financial 

 
Risk of assault whilst collecting, 
counting and banking Market rents. 
 
Risk Owner 
Executive Director (Environment) 
 

 
All Traders in cabins on the 
Square, now pay by Direct 
Debit. Low 

122  
Market Hall loss of income due to low 

 
Cabinet approved a rent 

Medium 

Page 11



 
Page 6 of 11 

Operational 

Financial 

take up of Market Hall stalls. 
 
Risk Owner 
Executive Director (Environment) 
 

reduction for the remaining 
Traders in the Cabins in the 
Square. 

 TWO NEW OPERATIONAL RISKS – 2049 & 2050 

2049 

Operational 

Financial 

 
Failure to determine planning 
applications in accordance with 
statutory timescales triggering the 
requirement to issue refunds of 
application fees under the ‘Planning 
Guarantee’. 
 
Risk Owner 
Chief Planning and Transportation 
Officer. 
 

 
Suitably qualified staff are being 
recruited as locums and efforts 
are being made to acquire 
permanent recruitments into 
posts.   
 
There is effective use of 
systems to ensure that 
agreements to extend planning 
applications are secured. 
 

Low 

2050 

Operational 

Contractual 

 
Lack of Registered Building Inspectors 
(RBI) to undertake the restricted 
functions in accordance with building 
regulations. 
 
 
Risk Owner 
Chief Planning and Transportation 
Officer 

 
Two members of staff are being 
trained to qualify as Registered 
Building Inspectors. 

Medium 

 
7. Changes to the Generic Risk Register 

 
There have been two minor changes to Generic Risk Register in respect to additional text 
being added to risk URNs 2008 and 2016.  

 
 
8. Summary Risk Register 

A summary list of all risks contained in the Generic, Operational and Strategic Risk Registers 
is given in Appendix 1 (Page 8). 

 
9. High Risks 

We have one Generic risk with a rating classed as “High” – Failure to conserve energy and 
reduce emissions thus resulting in excess costs to the Council and a negative impact on the 
environment (URN: 2016). 
 
No Operational risks have a rating classed as “High”  
 

Three Strategic risk’s are classed as “High” - Failing to recruit and retain suitably qualified 
staff (URN: 2001); Failure to deliver on Council’s Climate Declaration pledge and achieve 
Council operations Carbon Zero by 2030 (URN: 2035); From 1st April 2026 the Council as 
waste collection authority is required to start collecting food waste each week.  The council is 
continuing to work with Lancashire County Council to find a suitable waste transfer solution 
to manage food waste disposal.(URN: 2045). 
   

10. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

Not applicable  

Page 12



 
Page 7 of 11 

 
 
11. Consultations 

Consultation with Service Managers has taken place. 
 
 
15. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

.N/A 

Legal and human rights 
implications 

N/A 

Assessment of risk N/A 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

N/A 

 
16. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 Strategic Risk Register 

Generic Risk Register 
Operational Risk Register 

 
17. Freedom of Information 
 

The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000. 

 
18. Exempt Report 
 

The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972 
Schedule 12A  

Page 13

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 
Page 8 of 11 

 
Appendix 1 – Summary Risk Registers 
 

Generic 
 

 

ID Risk Ratings 
with 
controls 

1 Failure to conserve energy and reduce emissions thus resulting in excess costs to the 
Council and a negative impact on the environment (URN: 2016) 

High 

2 There is a risk that personal, sensitive, or bulk information is released into the public 
domain resulting in a likely GDPR fine, and a possible financial loss to the citizen. Causes 
include unauthorised penetration of ICT systems (external hacking); internal misuse of 
information (internal hacking); careless disposal of waste; loss of equipment/theft of 
equipment; data quality; process adherence; e-mail sent to incorrect recipient. (URN:2024) 

Medium 

3 Failure to insure Council buildings for rebuild value in the event of fire or other incident 
(URN: 2006) 

Medium 

4 Failure to comply with CDM Regulations (URN: 2021) Medium 

5 Failure to ensure health and safety of employees and members of the public and comply 
with Health & Safety Legislation both in, around and outside the workplace. (URN: 2008) 

Medium 

6 Unexpected system failures impacting onto the delivery of services (URN: 2014) Low 

7 Failure to manage projects effectively and ensure contracts are VFM (URN: 2004) Low 

8 Risk of litigation arising from poor advice or work carried out by Officers or non-
compliance with legislation (URN: 2007) 

Low 

9 Financial loss arising from historic claims for industrial injury (URN: 2020) Low 

10 Failure to ensure that personal data is kept securely in accordance with Data Protection 
Act and Freedom of Information Act 2000 (URN: 2017) 

Low 

11 Risk of failure to comply with our duty under the Finance Act 2017 to ensure any 
contractors we take on are complying with “IR35” legislation (off-payroll working 
arrangements) (URN: 2025) 

Low 

12 Failure to deliver critical services due unavailability  of  a key building  or facilities, lack of 
utilities, ICT failure or high levels of staff absenteeism resulting from infectious disease, flu 
pandemic or other serious incident  (URN: 2013) 

Low 

13 Risk of poor procurement practice resulting in breach of procurement regulations, standing 
orders or inefficient use of resources. (URN: 45) 

Low 

14 Failure to monitor and ensure spending is within budgetary limitations (URN: 2003) Low 

15 Failure to adequately protect against IT abuse (e.g. virus infection, hacking, sabotage, 
accessing unsuitable material, unlicensed software, misuse of personal data, breach of 
law, theft, fraud) (URN: 2015) 

Low 

16 Council staff at risk of attack of lone working outside core hours and / or attending out of 
hours call outs (URN: 2022) 

Low 

17 There is a risk that ICT hardware, e.g. laptops, smart phone or tablet, could be lost or 
stolen, exposing confidential information. (URN: 2023) 

Low 

Operational 

 
ID Risk Ratings 

with 
controls 

18 Theft or damage to vehicles and equipment (URN: 60) Medium 

19 Failure to meet statutory timescales for delivery of planning decisions (URN:2038) Medium 

20 Non-availability on-site of ICT Officers due to illness and/or self-isolation (URN: 2031) Medium 

21 Project Phoenix 1D – Site Preparation Works Grant Homes England default funding 
event resulting in grant clawback for not achieving completion milestones and State aid 
compliance (URN: 2033) Medium 

22 
Failure to complete food programme in 2023/24 due to Covid-19 (URN:2032) Medium 

Page 14



 
Page 9 of 11 

23 There is a risk that ICT systems and the network could fail due to insufficient 
infrastructure capacity or accidental damage, resulting in the degradation or loss of ICT 
Services on one or more sites. Causes include insufficient bandwidth on network links to 
handle data and / or voice traffic; insufficient storage space to save data on servers; 
equipment incapable of carrying out its required function effectively; services being 
affected due to insufficient licences; accidental damage by 3rd parties (URN: 132) Medium 

24 Forward funding of projects. Risk of not drawing down Action Plan allocations due to lack 
of forward funding (URN: 97) Medium 

25 Errors in Creditor Payment processes resulting in e.g. duplicate payments, non-payment, 
overpayment, reduction in credit limits with firms (URN: 2) Medium 

26 Liability for injury to health caused by asbestos in council owned buildings. (URN: 15) Medium 

27 Loss of local land charges records e.g. fire (URN: 28) Medium 

28 Failure/breakdown of CCTV system (URN: 102) Medium 

29 Inadequate Treasury Management Arrangements (URN: 7) Medium 

30 Risk of injury to the public due to the headstones and other memorials in the Borough’s 
cemeteries being in an unsafe condition (URN: 125) Medium 

31 Theft of works of art. (URN: 50) Medium 

32 Risk of injury to the public due to the council’s tree stock being unsafe, diseased or 
dying. (URN: 61) Medium 

33 Risk of flooding from watercourses as a result of lack of maintenance (URN: 58) Medium 

34 
Risks due to inadequate maintenance of car parks, bus shelters, HBC highways and 
lighting including Christmas Lights (URN: 59) Medium 

35 Accidental or malicious deletion of data from the HBC network (including e-mail) (URN: 
2026) Medium 

36 Failure to produce final accounts on time to appropriate legal & professional standards 
e.g. current Accounts & Audit Regulations, IFRS (International Financial Reporting 
Standards) (URN: 23) Medium 

37 Huncoat Garden Village risks associated to greater capital costs than identified in 
Business case and unable to agree terms with landowners that means land does not 
come forward for development as per the Masterplan. (URN 2040) Medium 

38 Third party suppliers/organisations cease trading or change business strategy, with risks 
including amendment to terms and conditions outside of contract, change in standards of 
provision, cessation of contract/non-renewal of existing contract, and provision of return 
of data to HBC. (URN: 2042) Medium 

39 Lack of Registered Building Inspectors (RBI) to undertake the restricted functions in 
accordance with building regulations. (URN 2050) Medium 

40 Access and availability to HBC data stored in the Cloud, should contractual obligations 
change or not be renewed. (URN: 2030) Low 

41 Failure to comply with external funding regimes and programmes, notional loss and/or 
recovery of significant regeneration funding depending on specific arrangements. (URN: 
81) Low 

42 Empty dwellings at risk of vandalism / fire damage presenting a danger to third parties 
(URN: 120) Low 

43 Failure to manage and control expenditure within private sector housing capital 
programme (URN: 82) Low 

44 Failure to protect customer’s personal banking information when making payments over 
the internet (URN: 41) Low 

45 Failure to maintain the Council’s non-housing assets due to lack of funding. (URN: 37) Low 

46 Adequately controlling temperatures of the Council’s operational buildings to provide 
suitable working conditions for staff and prevent disruption to services (URN: 114) Low 

47 Non-delivery of statutory requirements in connection with the Equality Act and age 
discrimination in respect of building compliance (URN: 26) Low 

48 ICT systems failure affecting service provision due to loss of Academy / Anite / Paris 
(URN: 39) Low 

49 Failure to follow election procedures (URN: 19) Low 

50 Failure to meet necessary legal requirements leading to claims being made (URN: 20) Low 

51 Risk of injury to the public, especially children and young people, due to the council’s 
play areas and young people’s facilities being in an unsafe condition.  (URN: 62) Low 

52 Impact on residents arising from flash flooding, sewer surcharge, infrastructure damage, 
rehousing, power outages etc as a result of adverse / extreme weather (URN: 113) Low 

53 Breakdown of equipment or vehicles (URN: 72) Low 

54 Ignition of flammable liquids in vehicle workshop (URN: 56) Low 

Page 15



 
Page 10 of 11 

55 Failure to meet statutory deadline for issue of Council Tax Bills at year end (URN: 21) Low 

56 Suspension of the Council’s vehicle operator's licence (URN: 53) Low 

57 Loss of planning application and permission records through fire or flood (URN: 65) Low 

58 Failure to generate forecast income from the Council’s investment property (URN: 11) Low 

59 Liability for costs on appeal against unreasonable refusal of planning application (URN: 
55) Low 

60 Errors in Debtors Administration e.g. Incorrect posting of payments (URN: 3) Low 

61 Errors in Cashiering i.e. posting monies to the wrong account (URN: 4) Low 

62 Failure to react to changes in Benefit Legislation (URN: 18) Low 

63 There is a risk that ICT Systems may fail and affect front line services e.g. Academy, 
Paris, Microsoft Dynamics, resulting in council staff being unable to carry out their normal 
working activities impacting on the quality of service delivered to the citizens of 
Hyndburn. Causes include intentional modification of software, hardware or it's 
environment; unintentional modification of software, hardware or it's environment; 
unauthorised modification of software, hardware or it's environment; malicious 
modification of software, hardware or it's environment. (URN: 131) Low 

64 There is a risk that a computer virus / malware could infect the HBC network due to a 
failure of protection mechanisms to identify and treat a virus, and the failure of Council 
staff to observer ICT policies and recommended working practices. (URN: 130) Low 

65 Abuse of children or adults at risk by member of staff or volunteer or failure to respond 
properly to safeguarding concerns (URN: 52) Low 

66 Risk of claims arising from owners of houses following contracts for group repairs and 
home improvements supervised by Regeneration and Development Team (URN: 68) Low 

67 Failure to complete audit plan and associated work to give sufficient assurance to 
External Audit in their Final Accounts Audit (URN: 1) Low 

68 Pollution or adverse effect on public health due to failure of refuse collection service 
(URN: 78) Low 

69 Drivers not holding a valid driver’s licence / the appropriate licence category / vocational 
licence (Driver CPC) and not carrying Driver CPC card with them when driving. (URN: 
129) Low 

70 Theft of Mayoral Chains and car whilst attending official mayoral engagement with 
associated risk of assault on mayoral party. (URN: 127) Low 

71 Failure to manage cremator operations in accordance with authorisation leading to 
excessive emissions (URN: 74) Low 

72 Failure to initiate prompt recovery action (URN: 5) Low 

73 Failure to meet contractual obligations under vehicle service level and contract hire 
agreements (URN: 67) Low 

74 Service or business needs not met due to failure of IT system, failure of network services 
or other reason (URN: 40) Low 

75 Risk of Damage to the Tiffany glass and paintings whilst moving/cleaning. (URN: 49) Low 

76 Gallery staff at risk of attack on attending out of hours call outs (URN: 64) Low 

77 Unacceptable vehicle emissions (URN: 76) Low 

78 Pollution of canal or local environment resulting in suspension of waste transfer at 
CVMU/Willows Lane (URN: 77) Low 

79 Failure to achieve and statutory housing responsibilities in terms of homelessness and 
housing need (URN: 98) Low 

80 Failure to complete statutory returns e.g. VAT (URN: 6) Low 

81 Loss of title deeds or contract documents e.g. fire (URN: 119) Low 

82 Risk of claims against the Council for unfair dismissal or other employment issues. 
(URN: 116) Low 

83 Vital electronic information becomes unreadable due to technical obsolescence. (URN: 
2043) Low 

84 Monitoring of Housing Benefit expenditure and subsidy loss (URB: 2046) Low 

85 Failure to determine planning applications in accordance with statutory timescales 
triggering the requirement to issue refunds of application fees under the ‘Planning 
Guarantee’. (URN 2049) Low 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
Page 11 of 11 

Strategic 

 
86 Uncertainty around funding for weekly food waste collection (URN: 2045) High 

87 Failing to recruit and retain suitably qualified staff (URN: 2001) High 

88 
Failure to deliver on Council’s Climate Declaration pledge and achieve Council 
operations Carbon Zero by 2030 (URN:2035) High 

89 
The acquisition of key town centre buildings and delivery of a £22 million regeneration 
project within Accrington Town Centre (URN:2036) Medium 

90 

That the Councils leisure service provider Hyndburn Leisure cease trading (resulting in 
the Council becoming responsible for some of their liabilities, eg. Pension deficit) or 
that they fail to repay debts to the Council. (URN: 1030) Medium 

91 Failure to progress and support development at Huncoat Garden Village (URN: 2044) Medium 

92 

Financial Overreach :--The Council is embarking on a range of major investments 
supported by significant amounts of External Funding.  Overspends or failure to deliver 
on these Projects could lead to significant additional costs falling on the Council, in 
terms of extra borrowing costs stemming from meeting additional project costs or the 
repayment of external funds. (URN:2037) Medium 

93 Substantial reduction in grant from Government (URN: 1027) Medium 

94 
Loss of considerable amount of cash due to deposits within banking sector that are 
subject to major turbulence. (URN: 1025) Medium 

95 Failure to ensure Financial Integrity (URN: 1004) Medium 

96 
Failure to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into 
terrorism as laid out in the Statutory Prevent Duty. (URN: 2034) Medium 

97 
 

Failure to successfully adopt the Hyndburn Local Plan which was submitted to the 
Planning Inspectorate in March 2025.  (URN 2048) Medium 

98 
Increased cost and programme timescale for the delivery of the three LUF project 
interventions in Accrington Town Centre (URN: 2047) Medium 

99 
A future pandemic can impact council services and cause harm to the health and 
wellbeing of the Hyndburn community (2039) Low 

100 
Failure to address unacceptable exposure from Strategic Partnerships & Joint Working 
(URN: 1006) Low 

101 Failure to follow correct procurement process (URN: 1015) Low 

102 
Failure to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and vulnerable adults (URN: 
1023) Low 

103 
Failure to address citizens needs in the event of a major incident, including civil 
disobedience, affecting residents or infrastructure of the Borough. (URN: 1022) Low 

104 
Failure to uphold high ethical standards of conduct and consequent reputational 
damage to the Council (URN: 1001) Low 

105 
Loss of income from unpaid invoices more than 6 months old impacting on General 
Fund revenue Balances. (URN: 1029) Low 

106 Failure to deliver objectives set out in the Corporate Strategy (URN: 1026) Low 

107 

Risk of Council acting unlawfully and failure to meet requirements of new and amended 
legislation (New legislation imposing significant new burdens will be dealt with as a 
separate risk if appropriate) (URN: 1014) Low 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE: 23 June 2025 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Vanessa Alexander - Resources and 
Council Operations  

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT & AUDIT 
OPINION 2024/25 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform and update Audit Committee on the Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit 

Opinion for 2024/25 and to give details on the performance of the Internal Audit Team 
and final outturn position for 2024/25. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The production of an Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion is a requirement of 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which are jointly published by the 
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) and the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 
is also an aid to those charged with governance in their consideration of the Annual 
Governance Statement in support of the Council’s Financial Statements. The report 
also enables those charged with governance to gain an independent viewpoint on the 
Council’s Control Environment. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4.



Page 2 of 3 
 

3.2 The Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion is a supporting piece of evidence 
and does not replace or prevent the Council’s requirement to produce the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

 
3.3 A copy of the Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 is attached as an 

appendix to this report. 
 
3.4 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards have been replaced with effect from 1st 

April 2025 with the Global Internal Audit Standards. The 2025/26 Annual Internal Audit 
Report and Opinion which will be reported in 2026 will be in accordance with the new 
standards. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options as the report is for informational purposes only and 

the Head of Audit & Investigations must produce an Annual Internal Audit Report & 
Audit Opinion to be in conformance with the PSIAS. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

Head of Audit & Investigations reflecting the actual work carried out in 2024/25. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report at this stage as it is purely 
an information / end of year position 
statement based on actual work completed 
in 2024/25. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

There are no direct risks from this report as 
it is reporting on actual completed work in 
2024/25. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
This report is produced for information 
awareness to update Audit Committee of 
the issues surrounding the Annual Internal 
Audit Report & Audit Opinion together with 
the Internal Audit performance and outturn 
position. This brings together details of the 
work carried out during 2024/25, which was 
risk based and a Customer First Analysis 

Page 20

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 3 of 3 
 

cannot be applied in the context of this 
report. 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT & 

AUDIT OPINION 
2024/25 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Services 

Town Hall – Broadway Annex 

 
Report Author: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigation 

Page 23



 
2 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 
The Audit Team was able to carry out sufficient work to enable an opinion to be given. The 

Head of Audit is pleased to report that good levels of internal control were found to be in 

place and no significant areas of concern were found that could impact on the Council’s 

Financial Statements. This is based on the work of the Internal Audit Team during 

2024/25. 

 

The key issues arising from this report are:- 

 

 The Head of Audit & Investigations is able to issue a positive opinion on the 

systems of Internal Control based on the work carried out in 2024/25 as detailed 

below. The opinion score slightly improved from 1.68 in 2023/24 to 1.53 in 2024/25. 

The number of recommendations decreased from 28 in 2023/24 to 13 in 2024/25. 

 

 Internal Audit did not identify any issues in 2024/25 during the course of their audit 

work that would have a material effect on the Council’s Financial Statements. 

 

 Internal Audit achieved audit plan coverage of 90.43% in 2024/25. This was 7.57% 

below the annual target of 98%. 

 

 Production and publication of this report is a requirement of the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards. This report satisfies the requirements for those charged 

with governance and forms a supplementary piece of evidence to the Annual 

Governance Statement. 

 

 

AUDIT OPINION 
 

 

All of the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the financial year 2024/25 was in 

conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The average opinion score in 

2024/25 was 1.53 as opposed to 1.68 in 2023/24. This is based on a scale of 1 to 4 where 

1 is the highest level of assurance and 4 is the lowest level of assurance. 

 

Therefore the Audit Opinion for 2024/25 is:- 

 

Substantial assurance:  The work undertaken showed there is a generally sound system 

of internal control designed to meet the service objectives, and controls are generally 

being applied consistently. However some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent 

application of controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

 

This statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. There is an on-going process 

for identifying, evaluating and managing key risks. These risks are reflected in the Internal 

Page 24



 
3 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

Audit Plan and are subject to their own reporting process during the course of the year 

which sits outside the Internal Audit role. 

 

Opinion Caveat – Those charged with Governance must remember that no system of 

control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can 

Internal Audit give that assurance. 

 

Clearly whilst the overall opinion for 2024/25 shows the risk score has improved from an 

average of 1.68 to 1.53, a substantial assurance opinion has still been given. It must be 

remembered that the Audit Team has not looked at all areas of the Council and issues 

identified in 2025/26 will feed into the next annual opinion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT & AUDIT OPINION 

- PURPOSE & BOUNDARIES 
 

 

Page 25



 
4 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

Management is responsible for the System of Internal Control and must set in place 

policies and procedures to ensure that the system is functioning correctly. Internal Audit 

review, appraise and report on the efficiency, effectiveness and economy of financial and 

other management controls. This report is the culmination of the work during 2024/25 and 

seeks to:- 

 

 Provide an opinion on the adequacy of the control environment 

 Comment on the nature and extent of any significant risk 

 Report the incidence of significant control failings or weaknesses 

 

Requirement for Internal Audit 

 

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 

Local Government Act (Section 151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The 

latter requires authorities to: 

“…undertake an adequate and effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness 

of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account 

public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.” 

 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) set out a detailed framework that 

Internal Audit must conform to. These cover all aspects of Internal Audit from behaviours 

to the actual way in which audit work should be conducted. It should be noted that the 

PSIAS are superseded by the Global Internal Audit Standards from 1st April 2025 and this 

will impact the Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion from 2025/26 onwards. 

 

In addition to the PSIAS both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) and the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) produce additional guidance 

and publications surrounding internal audit, control, governance and Audit Committees etc. 

One such publication is “The Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Service 

Organisation” republished in 2019. This sets out the standards that are expected not only 

of the Head of Internal Audit but also of the Authority as a whole. This publication 

compliments the PSIAS and what they aim to achieve. 

 

The role of internal audit is complemented by initiatives aimed at promoting effective 

corporate governance, risk management, anti-fraud & corruption including bribery, anti-

money laundering & proceeds of crime in addition to maintaining probity and value for 

money. 

 

The guidance accompanying the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also detail the 

need for sound systems of internal control and set out the basis for the necessity of 

Internal Audit. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also have a number of 

amendments in various years but these do not change the need for sound systems of 

internal control or the necessity of Internal Audit. 

 

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion 

 

Internal Audit remains committed to the Council’s objectives on Equality, Diversity & 

Inclusion. This is achieved through the way the team is managed, the way staff are trained 

Page 26



 
5 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

and by the way processes are put in place to ensure members of the team behave 

appropriately in their work with staff and management at all levels together with elected 

Members, members of the public and other external organisations. This again links into the 

requirements of the PSIAS. 

 

The Internal Audit team has received both Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Training in 

addition to other information supplied e.g. Newsround briefings, team discussions and 

corporate briefings / training. 

 

Declaration of Interests 

 

Internal Audit must avoid any conflict of interest that could impede any of the audit work 

carried out or cast doubt over the independence or integrity of the auditor carrying out the 

engagement. This links in to the ‘Due Professional Care & Ethics’ elements of the PSIAS. 

 

All members of the audit team are aware that they must declare any interests and sign an 

annual statement which also states they would inform the Head of Audit & Investigations if 

any issue became apparent during the year. The statement signed by members of the 

Audit Team is also declaring conformity with the Code of Ethics. 

 

The Head of Audit & Investigations can report that no member of the Audit Team had any 

issues that could have impacted on the integrity, professionalism or quality of the work 

during 2024/25. 

 

 

 

THANKYOU 
 

 

The Head of Audit & Investigations and Internal Audit Team would like to express their 
thanks to Management and all areas of the Council where work was undertaken during 
2024/25 for the help afforded to the Audit Team during the course of their work. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 

 

How Internal Control is Reviewed 

 

1.1 During 2024/25 the Authority’s risk registers have been continually updated. These 

form a key factor of Internal Audit’s operational plan each financial year. The review 

Page 27



 
6 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

process draws on key indicators of risks to the organisation with the aim of ensuring 

audit resources are allocated to the areas with the highest risk. 

 

1.2 Internal Audit uses a 9 point risk analysis matrix for determining the levels of risk as 

part of the annual audit planning process. Factors considered are:- 

 

o Audit Area covered by risk(s) in the Risk Registers 

o Have system changes taken place? E.g. to personnel or processes 

o Has the service area been subject to cuts / job losses / restructure? 

o Does External Audit require coverage? 

o Is the Audit b/fwd or deleted from the current audit plan? 

o Does the Audit Area directly affect the Council’s financial position? 

o Is it a Council / Management Team / Manager priority? 

o When was the last audit carried out? 

o What is the monetary value / income of the area? 

 

1.3 The audit plan includes a 10% contingency provision. Contingency days are utilised 

in response to unforeseen work demands that arise. In the event that there are 

contingency days that have not been required, these are used to enable additional 

audit areas to be covered within the plan as per the risk scoring matrix. 

 

1.4 The risk analysis and scoring part of the audit planning process results in a 

comprehensive range of audit engagements being undertaken during the financial 

year. These audits support the overall opinion on the control environment. Examples 

include:- 

 

o Systems based reviews of fundamental financial systems that could have a 

material impact on the Council’s financial statements e.g. Creditors, Debtors, 

Payroll, Treasury Management 

o Establishment audits e.g. Central Vehicle Maintenance Unit, Environmental 

Protection, Homelessness, Haworth Art Gallery 

o Systems based reviews of departmental systems e.g. Christmas Lights, Debt 

Recovery Arrangements, Planning Fees, Procurement Arrangements 

o External Grant Funding 

o ICT audits e.g. Assets, Network Controls, PCI & DSS Security 

o Contract audit 

o Fraud Strategy Work 

o Responsive fraud and irregularity investigations 

 

1.5 Audit work is risk based and the risk registers are cross referenced to the audit plan. 

Any risks identified within the risk registers that cannot be linked to the audit plan are 

added to the audit plan during the annual planning process. Whilst there were a small 

number of new risks in the risk registers, these did not require the creation of new 

areas within the Audit Plan as the risks linked to areas which already exist. These 

new risks were considered as part of the cross matching. Any significant risks are 

Page 28



 
7 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

acted upon during the financial year as opposed to waiting until the annual audit 

planning process which takes place towards the end of each financial year. 

 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 

 

1.6 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 set out clear instructions that Councils 

must follow. Parts of the regulations detail financial management and the need for 

Internal Audit. 

 

1.7 Financial management is covered within part 2 of the 2015 regulations and details 

what the Authority must have in place regarding:- 

 

o Responsibility for Internal Control 

o Accounting records and control systems 

o Internal Audit 

o Review of Internal Control System 

 

1.8 For clarity the specific regulations relating to the above areas are detailed in TABLE 

1 below. These detail the key parts of regulations 3 to 6. 

 

Regulation Requirement 

3 

A relevant authority must ensure that it has a sound system of internal 
control which:- 

(a)  Facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the 
achievement of its aims and objectives; 

(b) Ensures that the financial and operational management of the 
authority is effective; and 

(c) Includes effective arrangements for the management of risk 

4 (4) 

The financial control systems determines in accordance with paragraph 
(1) (b) must include: 

(a)  Measures – 
(i) to ensure the financial transactions of the authority are 

recorded as soon as, and as accurately as, reasonable 
practicable; 

(ii) to enable the prevention and detection of inaccuracies 
and fraud, and the reconstitution of any lost record; and 

(iii) to ensure that risk is appropriately managed; 
(b) identification of the duties of officers with financial transactions 

and division of responsibilities of those officers. 

5 (1) 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate 
the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards 
or guidance. 

5 (2) 

Any officer or member of a relevant authority must, if required to do so 
for the purpose of the internal audit – 

(a)  make available such documents and records; and 
(b) Supply such information and explanations; 

As are considered necessary by those conducting the internal audit. 

5 (3) 
In this regulation “documents and records” includes information recorded 
in an electronic form. 

6 (1) 
A relevant authority must, each financial year – 

(a)  Conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 

Page 29



 
8 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

control required by regulation 3; and 
(b) Prepare an annual governance statement 

 

Annual Governance Statement 

 

1.9 CIPFA guidance states that an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) should be 

produced to accompany the Council’s Financial Statements. 

 

1.10 The AGS is made up of numerous evidence sources from across the Council as a 

whole that collectively demonstrate why the Council believes it has good governance 

in place. The Head of Audit & Investigations supplies 5 pieces of evidence each year 

to show Internal Audit’s contribution to the Council’s governance processes. This 

report is one of those 5 pieces of evidence. 

 

1.11 It must be highlighted that this Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion is not the 

AGS and cannot be used to substitute it. 

 

Risk Management 

 

1.12 The Council has a well-established risk management process which is monitored and 

updated on a regular basis and reported to both the Council’s Corporate 

Management Team and the Audit Committee. 

 

1.13 There are currently 3 risk registers; Strategic, Operational and Generic. An additional 

risk register is intended to be added in 2025/26 which will specifically cover ‘Cyber 

Risks’. 

 

1.14 Risk owners and management are proactive in monitoring the tables and ensuring 

that obsolete risks are deleted and new emerging risks are added in addition to 

updating existing risks. 

 

1.15 The risk management process is subject to auditing by Internal Audit, however this is 

determined by the audit planning process and specifically the risk scoring matrix. 

 

1.16 The Head of Audit & Investigations can confirm that the risk management provides 

regularly updated risk information to both Corporate Management Team and Elected 

Members. 

 

Fraud 

 

1.17 Whilst it is not the primary role of Internal Audit to detect fraud, it does have a role in 

providing an independent assurance on the effectiveness of the processes put in 

place by management to manage the risk of fraud. Internal Audit carry out additional 

fraud related work at times, although this must not be prejudicial to the primary role of 

Internal Audit. Examples of the activities that may be carried out include:- 

o Investigation work surrounding fraud cases 

Page 30



 
9 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

o Responding to whistle-blowers 

o Considering fraud in every audit 

o Making recommendations to improve processes 

o Review fraud prevention controls and detection processes put in place by 

management 

 

1.18 Internal audit procedures alone, even when performed with due professional care, 

cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected. 

 

Additional Sources of Assurance 

 

1.19 During 2024/25 the Council was subject to a Local Government Association 

Corporate Peer Review Challenge. The report states “Hyndburn Borough Council is a 

Council which has many strengths and is delivering well for its residents and 

communities. The Council has strong ambitions and is making good progress on 

many of its big strategic projects to deliver sustainable growth in the Borough, 

including Accrington Town Centre Regeneration.” 

 

1.20 The report also makes a specific statement in relation to Internal Audit. The Peer 

Review report states “The Council has robust internal audit arrangements. There is a 

small team of experienced and capable officers who provide a good internal audit 

service. They characterise the council’s culture as ‘pro-audit’ and cite many examples 

where audit is pro-actively called upon to provide advice and appropriate challenge.” 

The report also states “The internal audit plan is produced in consultation with Heads 

of Service and Chief Officers and considers the Council’s risk assessment and risk 

register. Audit recommendations are tracked by the Internal Audit team. The service 

engages in a peer review process with neighbouring Councils which highlighted a 

positive culture and robust work.” 

 

 

 

1.21 The LGA Peer Challenge report gives many good examples from which the Head of 

Audit & Investigations can take assurance which reinforces the Head of Audit & 

Investigation’s opinion on the overall assurance and control framework of the 

Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 
10 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES ARISING 
 

 

2.1 Each audit report issued is given an audit opinion based on the issues identified 

and reported by Internal Audit. Table 2 below shows the opinions and how many of 

each was issued in 2024/25:- 

 

 TABLE 2 

AUDIT REPORT ASSURANCE OPINIONS 
Number issued 

in 2024/25 
 
Comprehensive assurance:  the work carried out within this audit 
engagement is in conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal 
control which is designed to meet the service objectives, in addition the 
work carried out showed controls are consistently being applied 

 

7 

 8 

Page 32



 
11 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

Substantial assurance:  the work carried out within this audit 
engagement is in conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. The work undertaken showed there is a generally sound 
system of internal control designed to meet the service objectives, and 
controls are generally being applied consistently. However some 
weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls 
put the achievement of particular objectives at risk 

 
 
Limited assurance:  the work carried out within this audit engagement 
is in conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The 
work undertaken showed weaknesses in the design and / or 
inconsistent application of controls that put the achievement of the 
service objectives at risk 

 

0 

 
No assurance:  the work carried out within this audit engagement is in 
conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The work 
undertaken showed weaknesses in controls and / or consistent non-
compliance with controls that could result / has resulted in failure to 
achieve the service objectives 

 

0 

 

2.3 This section of the report also details any audit engagements that resulted in 

‘Limited Assurance’ or ‘No Assurance’ opinions being given. 

 

2.4 In 2024/25 no audit engagements were given an opinion of ‘Limited Assurance’ or 

‘No Assurance’, therefore nothing requires reporting within this section of the 

Annual Internal Audit Report & Opinion. 

 

AUDIT PERFORMANCE 
 

 

Assessment of Internal Audit 

 

3.1 Internal Audit works closely with the Council’s External Auditors, Mazars. External 

Audit utilise work carried out by Internal Audit, particularly surrounding the 

fundamental controls of key systems within the Council to give them added 

assurance those key systems and processes are working effectively. This then 

enables External Audit to gain additional reliance that the data and information 

produced by these systems is reliable. Such assurances contribute to the 

conclusions made by External Audit on the Council’s financial statements. 

 

3.2 External Audit has specific interest on any issue that could impact on the Council’s 

Financial Statements. However during 2024/25 Internal Audit did not find any such 

issues. 

 

3.3 The Head of Audit & Investigations is part of the Lancashire Districts’ Councils Audit 

Group. This allows all the Lancashire Heads of Audit to discuss issues and raise 

Page 33



 
12 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

matters that could have future impacts. The group meets 3 or 4 times per year but 

the network is active all year as group members will highlight any issue they 

become aware of with the rest of the group via email between the scheduled 

meetings. 

 

3.4 Internal Audit must comply with the PSIAS and as part of this process the Head of 

Audit & Investigations has carried out a self-assessment of the Audit function 

against the Standards during 2024/25. The Head of Audit & Investigations has also 

produced a Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) with the self-

assessment. This details how those areas partially or not currently compliant will 

progress to become compliant. The QAIP is subject to on-going monitoring and 

revision. 

 

Global Internal Audit Standards 

 

3.5 The Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS) replace the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards with effect from 1st April 2025. 

 

3.6 The Internal Audit Team’s work must comply with the GIAS and as with the PSIAS 

will be subject to an external assessment of the Team against the Standards once 

every five years. 

 

3.7 Whilst the GIAS are not a complete reinvention and include some aspects of the 

PSIAS, they do change the approach to the Standards and include new areas of 

consideration for the Audit Team. 

 

3.8 The Head of Audit & Investigations has been exploring the GIAS since their 

publication in 2024 as part of the preparation for adoption by the Team and during 

2025/26 these will be embedded within the Team and its processes. 

 

3.9 The 2025/26 Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion will take the GIAS into 

consideration. It should be remembered that this 2024/25 Annual Internal Audit 

Report and Opinion is based on compliance with the outgoing PSIAS. 

 

External Assessment of Internal Audit 

 

3.10 During 2024/25, the Internal Audit Team worked in accordance with the PSIAS. The 

PSIAS have been replaced by the Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS) with 

effect from 1st April 2025. Whilst the 2025/26 Annual Internal Audit Report and 

Opinion will be based on the GIAS, this report is based on the PSIAS which were 

valid throughout the financial year. 

 

3.11 The PSIAS state that an external assessment of the audit function and its 

conformance to the Standards must be carried out at least once every 5 years. The 

Internal Audit function was reviewed in November 2022 in accordance with the 

PSIAS. This was undertaken as part of an agreement between 8 Lancashire 

Councils, which is part of the Lancashire Audit Group, to work together and achieve 

the external assessment through a Peer Review process. The next assessment of 

Page 34



 
13 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

Internal Audit should take place within the 5 years period ending November 2027. 

The new GIAS have retained the External Assessment section of the PSIAS. 

 

3.12 In 2022, Hyndburn’s Internal Audit function was inspected by a current Lancashire 

Head of Audit and an ex-Lancashire Head of Audit who has moved into a more 

senior wider role within their Council. This was a thorough process and involved 

them examining the self-assessment against the PSIAS, supporting evidence, 

questionnaires and interviews of:- 

o Chief Executive 

o Deputy Chief Executive (s151) 

o Executive Director (Monitoring Officer) 

o Chair of Audit Committee 

o A random cross section of 3 Heads of Service 

o A random cross section of a further 2 Heads of Service (Questionnaire only) 

o Audit Team (Senior Auditor – Interview only) 

o Head of Audit & Investigations (Interview only) 

 

3.13 The External Review Team also examined examples of the work carried out by 

internal audit in addition to processes, policies and procedures used. 

 

3.14 The latest external assessment concluded in November 2022 and found that the 

Audit function conforms to the PSIAS and the External Review Team stated they 

only identified 5 points for consideration into the QAIP. The 5 recommendations 

were included in the QAIP and steps were taken during 2024/25 to ensure these 

were implemented. The Head of Audit & Investigations can confirm that 3 of the 

recommendations have been adopted. Of the 2 remaining recommendations 1 is 

partially adopted with further work and consideration taking place to be able to 

implement the second half of that recommendation and the remaining 1 is being 

examined as it is an issue which occurs very rarely. 

 

3.15 The External Review Team stated “The Peer Review was an extremely positive 

exercise with feedback from all interviewees mirroring a consistent view that the 

Internal Audit Team, in particular the Head of Audit and Investigations, is seen as a 

key strategic partner within the Council. It is clear that the Internal Audit team is a 

valued service offering sound, confidential and independent advice across the 

Council. In particular, this can be evidenced by the wide range of investigations the 

team are asked to support due to their skill set and ability.” The Internal Audit team 

will work to build on what the external inspectors found. 

 

Review of the System of Internal Control and Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

 

3.16 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 5 (1) states that a relevant 

authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of 

its risk management, control and governance processes taking into account public 

sector internal audit standards or guidance. Regulation 6 (1) (a) states “A relevant 

authority must, each financial year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the 

system of internal control required by regulation 3. 

 

Page 35



 
14 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

3.17 The Internal Audit process is a key part of the annual review of the effectiveness of 

the system of Internal Control and the Annual Audit Opinion on page 2 of this report 

reflects that the majority of controls reviewed in 2024/25 were operating effectively. 

 

Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme 

 

3.18 As part of the on-going monitoring and assessment of conformance with the PSIAS 

the Head of Audit & Investigations has a QAIP in place. The QAIP details the steps 

that are being taken to move the areas of partial or non-compliance to full 

compliance. The QAIP will be subject to on-going review and will be periodically 

reported back to Corporate Management Team and Audit Committee so that they 

can monitor the progress being made. 

 

3.19 In the event that any area within the PSIAS changed from full compliance to partial 

or non-compliance this would then be included in the QAIP detailing what steps will 

be taken to ultimately make that area fully compliant again. In addition, any actions 

arising from the External Inspection of Internal Audit against the Standards are also 

added into the QAIP. Therefore the QAIP is an evolving document that is subject to 

change and updates to reflect the actual position with the Council’s conformance 

against the PSIAS. 

 

 

Satisfaction & Quality Questionnaire (S&QQ) 

 

3.20 Assessment of the ongoing performance, standards and seeking improvement is 

referred to within the PSIAS and is an area that the Head of Audit & Investigations 

has had processes in place for many years. 

 

3.21 The S&QQ asks for the auditee’s opinions on 11 questions with each one ranging 

from strongly agree to strongly disagree. The 12th question is a free-form text box 

allowing comments to be made on whether there is anything that could improve the 

service and the impact on their service area. 

 

3.22 TABLE 3 below details the S&QQ results for 2024/25 and includes the comparative 

results for the preceding financial years. 

 

 TABLE 3 

 Strongly 
Agree 

Agree Unsure Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

1) The objectives recorded on the 
Audit Brief were clearly 
communicated to me at the 
commencement of the review 

76.92% 23.08% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 86.67% 13.33% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

2) I was updated regularly on the 
progress of the review 

69.23% 30.77% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 93.33% 6.67% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

3) My concerns and / or issues 
were adequately considered during 

92.31% 7.69% 0 0 0 

Page 36



 
15 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

the review 

2023/24 Comparison 86.67% 6.67% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 70% 20% 0 0 0 
      

4) I felt the audit report covered the 
main objectives, was informative 
and meaningful 

84.62% 15.38% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 93.33% 6.67% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

5) The Auditor(s) was courteous 
and professional with myself and 
my team throughout the process 

100% 0 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 100% 0 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

6) The auditor was punctual for 
any arranged meetings 

100% 0 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 100% 0 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

7) The auditor was prepared to be 
flexible and did not significantly 
disrupt my service area 

92.31% 7.69% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 100% 0 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

8) The timespan from the 
commencement of the review to 
the final report was reasonable 

84.62% 15.38% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 93.33% 0 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

9) The auditor’s conclusions and 
opinion were logical and fairly 
recorded within the report 

69.23% 30.77% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 86.67% 6.67% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

10) I feel that my service area has 
benefited from this review, and it 
provides assurance on the areas 
covered within the review 

69.23% 30.77% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 93.33% 6.67% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 90% 10% 0 0 0 
      

11) Any associated  
recommendations were 
constructive and will add benefit to 
my area upon implementation 

69.23% 30.77% 0 0 0 

2023/24 Comparison 80% 6.67% 0 0 0 

2022/23 Comparison 70% 20% 0 0 0 
      

 

3.23 There were 13 completed questionnaires and this equates to 143 potential 

responses as there are 11 questions on the form. A total of 143 responses were 

given as all questions were answered by all 13 respondents. 

 

3.24 Of the 143 responses given, 118 (82.52%) were ‘strongly agree’. A further 25 

(17.48%) responses were ‘agree’. The Head of Audit & Investigations is able to 

state that there is an overall strong positive perception of the Team and its work 

based on these responses as the overwhelming majority of the responses were in 

the strongly agree category with the rest still being in agree category. 

Page 37



 
16 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

 

Internal Audit Performance 

 

3.25 It is good practice to monitor key performance measures. These can support the 

PSIAS but are not required for any form of national or mandatory collation. It does 

also enable the Head of Audit & Investigations together with Management and 

those charged with Governance to compare year on year performance. 

Accountability for the response to Internal Audit’s advice and recommendations lies 

with Management who either accept and implement the advice or recommendations 

or accept the risks associated with not taking action 

 

3.26 The performance parameters recorded are similar to those maintained by the 

majority of Audit Teams in Lancashire and the parameters themselves were 

originally agreed with External Audit. 

 

3.27 TABLE 4 below details performance for 2024/25 together with the 2 most recent 

financial years as a comparison, although older statistical data is held by the Head 

of Audit & Investigations. 

 

 TABLE 4 

Performance Measure 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

No. of Audit Engagements completed 
compared to those planned in the audit 
plan 

18 20 15 

Number of Audit Reports Issued 18 22 15 

Percentage of Audits completed within 
budget time allocation 

88.88% 95.45% 100% 

Number of Audit Recommendations made 14 28 13 

Percentage of Audit Recommendations 
agreed for implementation by 
Management 

100% 100% 100% 

Number of Satisfaction & Quality 
Questionnaires Issued 

17 21 15 

Number of Satisfaction & Quality 
Questionnaires Received 

10 15 13 

Percentage of clients satisfied with the 
service provided based on the 
questionnaires returned 

100% 100% 100% 

 

3.28 The number of completed audit engagements decreased from 22 to 15, a 31.4% 

decrease on 2023/24. There were 5 audit engagements which were work in 

progress as at 31st March 2025 but these do not reflect in the number which were 

fully completed. These 5 audit engagements will be included in the 2025/26 

statistical information. All audit engagements completed in 2024/25 were within their 

time allocation. The team received 86.6% of the Internal Audit Quality 

Questionnaires issued with 13 out of the 15 issued being received. This is than in 

2022/23 with 15 being received. This is significantly higher than in recent years. 

 

Page 38



 
17 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

3.29 Accountability for the response to Internal Audit’s advice and recommendations lies 

with Management who either accept and implement the advice or recommendations 

or accept the risks associated with not taking action. 

 

Follow up Work 

 

3.30 Once recommendations become actions agreed with Management in the relevant 

audit area this does not signify the end of audit involvement until the next time the 

area is audited. 

 

3.31 Internal Audit will revisit the actions agreed at a defined future date, usually around 

6 months, to re-examine whether the actions agreed have been implemented as 

agreed. Internal Audit refer to this action as a ‘Follow Up’. 

 

3.32 Progress on follow ups is reported to Audit Committee on quarterly basis. The Audit 

Committee can request full explanation from Management on areas that are not 

implemented. 

 

3.33 During 2024/25 Internal Audit carried out follow up work on 6 audit areas with a total 

of 11 actions agreed. Follow up work revealed that all 11 had been fully 

implemented. 

 

Internal Audit Team – Staff Turnover 

  

3.34 The level of staffing within the Audit Team remained constant throughout 2024/25 at 

3.0 FTE. 

 

3.35 The Audit Team lost 13 days as a result of sickness absence and 3 days due to 

compassionate / bereavement leave. 

 

Use of Audit Time 

 

3.36 TABLE 5 below shows an analysis of Internal Audit time during 2024/25 with the 

comparative figures for the previous 2 financial years. This is based on actual time 

spent excluding both statutory and annual leave together with any other absences 

such as sickness. 

 

 TABLE 5 

Analysis of Audit Time 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Audit Days 84.8% 84.8% 83.0% 

Training 2.9% 3.0% 2.6% 

Management 9.0% 8.1% 8.0% 

Other Non-Audit Time 3.3% 4.1% 6.4% 

 

3.37 The 2024/25 figures show slight drops in both the amount of time devoted to audit 

days and training time. The amount of management time remained practically the 

same whilst other non-audit time increased. The team still participated in various 

training activities to ensure skills and knowledge remained up to date.  

 

Page 39



 
18 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS OF AUDIT TIME – 2024/25 
 

 

4.1 TABLE 6 below details the work carried out by Internal Audit during 2024/25 and is 

based on actual time recorded against the original approved time allocated within 

the Audit Plan for 2024/25. 

 

4.2 A total of 502.79 days were delivered against 556 planned audit days. There were 

115.83 days recorded in non-audit work as opposed to 64 days allocated in the 

audit plan. Non-audit work includes management meetings, personal development 

reviews, regional audit groups, team meetings, timesheets etc. There were 159.17 

days recorded in absences as opposed to the 163 days allocated in the audit plan. 

Absences cover statutory leave, annual leave, sickness etc. Absences in 2024/25 

included annual leave or statutory leave for bank holidays and 13 day of sickness. 

There was 2 days of special domestic leave and 3 days of 

compassionate/bereavement leave. 

 

4.3 TABLE 6 does not include the areas within the audit plan where no time was 

recorded and therefore the table does not reflect the whole audit plan, only the 

areas where time was recorded during 2024/25. 

 

 TABLE 6 

Core Systems 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Systems Based Reviews    
Council Tax  1.26 Audit Completed – B/fwd 

Creditor Payments 18  Audit Outstanding 

Debtors 18  Audit Outstanding 

Housing Benefits  0.17 Audit Query 

NDR  18.09 Audit Completed – B/fwd 

Payroll 23 13.59 Audit Commenced – W.I.P. 

Treasury Management 12 9.02 Audit Completed 

Systems Queries / Work    

Page 40



 
19 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

Council Tax  0.12 Audit Query 

Creditor Payments  0.18 Audit Query 

Debtors  0.05 Audit Query 

General Ledger  0.14 Audit Query 

Housing Benefits  0.32 Audit Query 

NDR  0.10 Audit Query 

Payroll  0.84 Audit Query 

Treasury Management  2.40 Audit Query 

TOTAL for Core Systems 71 46.28 
Utilised 65.18% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

Non-Core Systems 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Car Leasing / Loans  0.51 Audit Query 

CCTV  1.29 Audit Query 

Charities  1.69 Audit Work Completed 

Christmas Lights 10 10.75 Audit Completed 

Debt Recovery Arrangements 13  Audit Outstanding 

DFG’s  2.32 Audit Query 

Flexi Scheme  1.19 Audit Queries 

Health & Safety  0.67 Audit Query 

Insurance Arrangements  12.62 Audit Completed 

Land Charges & Registry VDD  0.03 Audit Query 

Mayoral Allowances / Secretarial  0.37 Audit Queries 

Officers Imprests & Subsistence  1.24 Audit Input / Queries 

P-Card Processes  0.03 Audit Query 

Planning Fees 14 7.52 Audit Complete 

Procurement Arrangements 13 11.46 Audit Commenced – W.I.P. 

S106 Agreements  0.27 Audit Queries 

TOTAL for Non-Core 
Systems 

50 51.96 
Utilised 103.92% of 

Allocated Audit Days 

 

Establishments 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

CVMU 12 11.24 Audit Completed 

Environmental Protection 15 15.98 Audit Completed 

Fleet Management  18.70 Audit Completed 

Homelessness Team 10 10.62 Audit Completed 

Haworth Art Gallery 13 12.68 Audit Completed 

Markets  0.64 Audit Queries 

Parks & Open Spaces  16.17 Audit Completed 

TOTAL for Establishments 50 86.03 
Utilised 172.06% of 

Allocated Audit Days 

 

Computer Audit 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Assets 10 9.48 Audit Commenced – W.I.P. 

Help Desk  0.03 Audit Query 

Internet / Email  7.40 Audit Queries 

Mobile Telephony  0.14 Audit Query 

Network Controls 12 8.21 Audit Completed 

PCI & DSS Security 5  Audit Input / Ongoing 

System Development  1.44 Audit Advice & Input 

Watchguard Software  0.18 Audit Advice & Input 

Page 41



 
20 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

TOTAL for Computer Audit 27 26.88 
Utilised 99.26% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

Contract Audit 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Capital Programme  1.09 Audit Completed & Queries 

Other Contract Issues 10 0.58 Audit Advice / Query 

Over £250 Exp. Monitoring  3.40 Audit Compliance Work 

Partnerships 12  Audit Outstanding 

Subsidy Control 13  Audit Outstanding 

TOTAL for Contract Audit 35 5.07 
Utilised 14.49% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

Grant Funding Initiatives 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Housing Support Fund  0.07 Audit Queries 

Huncoat Garden Village  1.27 Audit Input & Queries 

King George V Playing Fields 12  Audit Input & Queries 

Levelling Up Fund 25 6.55 Audit Input & Queries 

Long Term Plan for Towns 10  Audit Input & Queries 

NNDR3 Grant Claim 5 3.75 Audit Completed 

Other Funding Streans  0.07 Audit Input & Queries 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 25 3.46 Audit Input & Queries 

Wilsons – New Leisure Centre 15 6.70 Audit Input & Queries 

TOTAL for Contract Audit 92 21.87 
Utilised 23.77% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

Follow Ups 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

General Follow Up Work 6 3.60 General Follow Up Work/Admin 

TOTAL for Follow Ups 6 4.40 
Utilised 60% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

Audit Advice 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Benefit Issues  5.36 Advice & Audit Liaison 

Internet  24.09 Advice & Compliance Monitoring 

ICO Web Info  2.23 Audit Awareness & Advice 

Audit Support to Other Services  20.25 Audit Input / Advice 

Broadway Building / Security  4.36 Audit Input / Solutions 

Year End Issues  1.92 Audit Input 

Friendly Faces  4.67 Head of Audit Participation 

Retention & Disposal Document  0.93 Audit Input / Advice 

Internal Audit – Future Issues  3.58 Audit Input 

Threatening Email Issue  0.10 Audit Input 

Members iPads  0.34 Audit Queries 

Performance Meeting - SR  0.17 Audit Input 

Broadway Fire Escape  0.68 Audit Input 

eBikes  0.07 Audit Query 

Portfolio Briefing  2.13 Audit Input 

Leaders Policy Board  0.27 Audit Input 

Suicide Intervention Strategy  0.41 Audit Input 

Procurement Act 2023  0.91 Audit Input / Training 

Page 42



 
21 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

Global Internal Audit Standards  0.37 Audit Input 

Big Thankyou  0.58 Audit Input 

Town Centre Heritage Hub  0.27 Audit Query 

Admin Team - Reception  0.07 Audit Query 

Ukranian Donation  0.10 Audit Input 

ICT Laptop  0.17 Audit Input 

    

    

    

 42  Plan Allocation for Advice 

TOTAL for Audit Advice 42 74.03 
Utilised 176.26% of 

Allocated Audit Days 

 

Other Audit Areas 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Business Continuity Planning 12 8.99 Audit Completed 

Risk Management  0.17 Audit Input & Queries 

Safeguarding  0.58 Audit Queries & Input 

TOTAL for Other Audit 
Areas 

12 9.74 
Utilised 81.17% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

Ad-hoc Work & 
Investigations 

Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

External Consultancy Fees / 
Costs 

13 1.72 Audit Commenced – W.I.P. 

Local Plan Production 13 7.82 Audit Commenced – W.I.P. 

New Financials / HR System 12 2.46 Audit Input / Queries 

Rent Reviews 18 10.59 Audit Completed 

Complaint – Standards Issue  4.60 Audit Work Carried Out 

Complaint – Information Handling  3.81 Audit Work Carried Out 

Issue – Contract / Spend  3.02 Audit Work Carried Out 

Criminal Facilitation of Tax 
Evasion 

 0.07  

HR Issue  0.85 Audit Work Carried Out 

Productivity Plan  0.51 Audit Query 

Long Service Award  0.41 Audit Input 

Overspend / Contract Issue  0.71 Audit Work Carried Out 

New Audit Standards  0.68 Audit Input / Queries 

New Fraud Policy  0.74 Audit Work Carried Out 

Complaint 2 – Standards Issue  4.77 Audit Work Carried Out 

LGA Peer Review  3.29 Audit Input 

Code of Corporate Governance  0.91 Audit Input 

Benefits HMOs  5.49 Audit Input / Queries 

Driving Licence and Policy  5.34 Audit Work Carried Out 

Devolution and White Paper  0.99 Audit Input / Queries 

LUF Budgets / Funding  18.72 Audit Input / Queries 

    

    

Cont Allocated – Haworth Art 
Gallery 

-13   

Cont Allocated – Rent Reviews -18   

Contingency 78  Contingency Days 

TOTAL for Ad-hoc Work & 
Investigations 

103 77.50 
Utilised 75.24% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

Page 43



 
22 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

 

Service Improvement 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

LGCAG Benchmarking  5.11 Performance Indicators 

OFLOG 4 0.30 Audit Input 

TOTAL for Service 
Improvement 

4 5.41 
Utilised 135.25% of 

Allocated Audit Days 

 

Consultancy & Corporate 
Objectives 

Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Annual Governance Statement 1 0.64 Audit Work Carried Out 

Annual Audit Report 3 2.00 Audit Work Carried Out 

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 10 12.54 Intel Alerts / Queries / Work 

Audit Committee 5 7.85 Committee Prep / Mtgs / Training 

Audit Plan & Planning 14 12.76 Monitor Plan & Prep of 24/25 
Plan 

Cabinet  4.17 Support Audit Work / Knowledge 

Community Trigger / Anti-Social  12.65 Audit Work Carried Out 

Complaint Investigations 3  Audit Work Carried Out 

External Audit 6 2.15 Queries & Supply IA Work 

FOI Requests  0.95 Audit Input / Support / Queries 

GDPR Issues / Queries  2.55 Audit Input / Support / Queries 

Money Launder & Proc of Crime  1.05 Queries dealt with 

National Fraud Initiative 7 8.55 Support & Audit Work Carried 
Out 

Peer Review of Internal Audit  0.20 Head of Audit Input into process 

PSIAS  2.95 Audit Query 

Schools Ambassador Scheme  3.59 Support & Mentoring 

Service Planning  0.57 Audit Work 

Standards / Scrutiny Committee  0.88 Audit Work 

Whistleblowing  2.53 Audit Work 

TOTAL for Other Audit 
Areas 

49 78.58 
Utilised 160.37% of 

Allocated Audit Days 

 

Training 
Plan 
Days 

Actual 
Days 

Comments 

Staff Development & Training 15 15.84 Various Training – mainly in-house 

TOTAL for Training 15 19.01 
Utilised 105.60% of Allocated 

Audit Days 

 

4.4 There were 5 audit engagements that were in progress at year end but not 

completed, these will all be reported in 2025/26. There were 5 audit engagements 

not carried out during 2024/25, 1 was deferred due to system / process changes 

that did not take place until very late in the financial year which meant the audit 

could not be carried out prior to that point. The remaining 4 were not commenced 

due to time constraints or due to other audit engagements being carried out which 

were not originally part of the 2024/25 Audit Plan. The 5 audit engagements that 

were not commenced have been re-risk scored as part of the 2025/26 Audit Plan 

process and all 5 are included in the 2025/26 Audit Plan.. 

 

4.5 The Audit Plan is monitored monthly by the Head of Audit & Investigations therefore 

emerging risks are considered and absorbed into the work of the team as required. 

Page 44



 
23 Annual Internal Audit Report & Audit Opinion 2024/25 

The Head of Audit & Investigations will seek re-approval of the Audit Plan from 

Audit Committee if there is major slippage or significant risks arising that result in a 

major deviation from planned audit work. The time lost to sickness, compassionate 

leave and additional leave purchased in year equated to 3.24% in Audit Plan terms. 

 

4.6 Target coverage for the 2024/25 Audit Plan was 98% and 90.43% was achieved. 

The out-turn figure is 7.57% below the annual target, however, when the 3.24% 

mentioned above is taken into consideration the actual shortfall is 4.33%. The 

2025/26 Audit Plan coverage target remains at 98%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT DISTRIBUTION 
 

 

The report has been distributed to the following:- 

 

o Corporate Management Team 

o Members of Audit Committee 

o External Audit 

o Internal Audit 

 

 

 

REPORT VERSION 
 

 

Draft Report Checked & Approved:    Date 13 May 2025 

 

Final Report Issued:       Date 13 May 2025 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE: 23 June 2025 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Vanessa Alexander - Resources and 
Council Operations  

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT REPORTS & KEY ISSUES – PROGRESS 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 2025 – MAY 
2025 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period March 2025 – May 

2025 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 note the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report crosses financial years and covers progress for the financial year 2024/25 

and the period of March 2025 to May 202 of the current financial year. The audit areas 
and any key issues detailed at Appendix 1. 

 
3.2 Members should be aware that the number of audit reports that are issued between 

each Committee meeting is subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and 
any non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team may be involved in. 
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued 
and agreed will be included. 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5.



Page 2 of 4 
 

3.3 Any investigations that may be carried out will not be included as a matter of routine in 
this report, particularly if they relate to a specific individual or individuals. 

 
3.4 There was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 2024/25 

financial year in terms of audit days completed. 
   

Position as at end of March 2025  =  90.43% of the plan completed 
 
3.5 The position at the end of March 2025 can be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2024 8.27% 

May 2024 6.73% 

June 2024 3.54% 

July 2024 9.19% 

August 2024 7.96% 

September 2024 7.30% 

October 2024 9.22% 

November 2024 6.87% 

December 2024 6.72% 

January 2025 9.03% 

February 2025 8.11% 

March 2025 7.49% 

 
3.6 Whilst the team was 7.57% below the target for the year, this did not have a material 

effect on being able to produce an Audit Opinion for the year. Key factors contributing 
to the shortfall were sickness and compassionate/bereavement leave. 

 
3.7 With regards to 2025/26 there is a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by 

the end of the current financial year in terms of audit days completed. As the audit 
team complete timesheets which then feed into the audit plan, it is possible to state the 
progress to date and the projected end of year position if that date is extrapolated out. 
Therefore:- 

  Position as at end of May 2025  =  13.92% of the plan completed 
  Projected out-turn position for 2025/26 =  83.55% of the plan completed 
 
3.8 The position at the end of May 2025 can be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2025 7.35% 

May 2025 6.57% 

 
 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only. 

Page 48



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during 
the audit process itself, there is no direct 
risk implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit 
Team against the annual Internal Audit 
Plan. The Audit Planning process has had 
an equality impact assessment which 
remains valid and it is not necessary to 
update this with a Customer First Analysis 
at this time. The individual audit 
assignments may, in some cases, feed into 
the needs of equality and diversity issues 
within individual service areas of the Council 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 

Page 49

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 4 of 4 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 23 June 2025 
 
Summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out 
March 2025 – May 2025 
 
 
Parks & Open Spaces:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
ICT Assets:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 The audit found that the review of the information security policy was overdue. There 

are schedule review dates and Management agreed to address this and review the 
policy. 
 
 

 

Page 50



Page 1 of 5 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE: 23 June 2025 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Vanessa Alexander - Resources and 
Council Operations  

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: Audit Follow-Up Report for the period March 
2025 – May 2025 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously 

agreed action plans for completed audit reports. The follow-ups detailed within this 
report are those carried out during the period March 2025 to May 2025. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 
 

 Notes the content of this report for informational purposes 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report covers the period March 2025 to May 2025 and provides the details of the 

follow-ups carried out shown at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 After the agreement of the recommendations between Management and Internal Audit 

following the completion of the audit assignment, Internal Audit revisits the area and 
the recommendations are reviewed to ensure they have been implemented as agreed. 
This process is known as the ‘Follow-Up’ 

 
3.3 Internal Audit assesses the current position to what was agreed at the end of the audit 

assignment. Where the Service Area has taken no action, then Internal Audit will 
question why and issue a revised action plan. Part of the control within this process is 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6.



Page 2 of 5 
 

consideration by Audit Committee of any issues that arise. The Committee has the 
ability to ask questions of Management in the relative service areas why they have not 
acted upon the agreed action plan. The Committee can also express what its 
expectations would be with regard to such a problem occurring. 

 
3.4 Internal Audit aim to carry out a follow-up for each completed audit area within 6 

months of completion. However, there are a number of expectations to that aim:- 
 

 Follow-up in 6 months would be pointless if the recommendations are low enough 
priority to allow a longer time frame. 

 Work of the Audit Team does not allow a follow-up to be carried out. Although Follow-
Ups are an important part of the process, the Head of Audit & Investigations must 
always weigh this against the need for achieving the audit plan and auditing the risks 
the Council faces. 

 There were no recommendations arising from the original audit assignment 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for information only. 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed. 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during 
the audit process itself; there is no direct 
risk implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit 
Team in terms of following up on previously 
agreed recommendations at the end of an 
audit assignment. Whilst individual actions 
may occasionally have equality or diversity 
requirements, this report does not as it is 
presenting facts from other sources. 

 
 

Page 52

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 3 of 5 
 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 
List of Background Papers  

 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



Page 4 of 5 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 23rd June 2025 
 
Follow-Ups March 2025 to May 2025 
 

 The table below shows an analysis of the results of the above follow-up having taken 
place during the follow-up period as above. 

 

Audit Area Number of 
Actions 
Agreed 

Number of 
Actions 
Agreed 

Implemented 

Comments 

Treasury 
management  

1 1 Implemented – Consideration was to be 
given to add a new risk to the Risk 
Register in relation to Section 114 notices. 
The Council already has in place a robust 
framework for managing all types of 
investment risks, however to ensure 
possible risks re Section 114 notices being 
issued, the team are undertaking additional 
due diligence to include reviewing the local 
press for any sign of financial distress, 
analysing the latest financial statements of 
the local authority and assessing the 
overall financial health and stability of the 
local authority.  
An entry in the corporate Operational Risk 
Register for inadequate treasury 
management arrangements exists. The 
risk of an investment loss with a local 
authority that has issued a Section 114 
Notice is covered and therefore an 
additional entry is not required.  

S106 
Agreements 

3 3 Implemented – The monitoring of the 
S106 agreements will be carried out on a 
six monthly basis. The S106 details 
including trigger points, raising of invoices 
and site inspections are recorded on a 
spreadsheet which is shared with a 
number of service areas. This spreadsheet 
is being brought up to date to assist with 
the monitoring process.  

   Implemented – Consideration was given 
to record the rates of interest applicable 
within a table. It was noted the rates of 
interest can be clearly identified without the 
need for tabulation.  

Page 54



Page 5 of 5 
 

   Partially implemented – S106 agreement 
details are recorded on the Land Charges 
database and are removed after a set 
period of time, following correct payment 
and implementation of the Agreement. The 
Land Charges data is currently being 
cleansed in readiness for transfer to Land 
Registry. During this process, entries will 
be verified by the Planning Team to 
determine if they can be removed. This 
work is ongoing. The details are recorded 
on the monitoring spreadsheet which can 
be viewed by the Land Charges Officer.  

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE: 23 June 2025 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Vanessa Alexander - Resources and 
Council Operations  

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: GLOBAL INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS - 
QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAMME 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the current position with the Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme (QAIP) which sets out how we manage any of the Global 
Internal Audit Standards (GIAS) that are not compliant, thus ensuring conformance 
with the GIAS overall. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Internal Audit Team must work within the Global Internal Audit Standards (GIAS). 

Where the team is either partially or not compliant with any of the Standards these are 
detailed within the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). 

 
3.2 The GIAS replaced the former Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) with 

effect from 1st April 2025. This current assessment of the QAIP was carried out in 
March 2025 and as a result the reference to some of the Standards is based on the 
PSIAS standard numbering as opposed the GIAS standard numbering. This will be 
updated accordingly during 2025/26. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7.



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
3.2 The Standards are subject to a self-assessment which is carried out annually by the 

Head of Audit & Investigations and also an external assessment carried out a minimum 
of once every 5 years. The last external assessment of Internal Audit’s conformance 
with the Standards took place in November 2022 where the External Review Team 
stated “The Peer Review was an extremely positive exercise with feedback from all 
interviewees mirroring a consistent view that the Internal Audit Team, in particular the 
Head of Audit and Investigations, is seen as a key strategic partner within the Council. 
It is clear that the Internal Audit team is a valued service offering sound, confidential 
and independent advice across the Council. In particular, this can be evidenced by the 
wide range of investigations the team are asked to support due to their skill set and 
ability.” 

 
3.3 The standards state that is a QAIP in place to demonstrate both how conformance with 

the Standards is monitored and met together with what is in place for those areas that 
do not fully comply with the Standards. The QAIP as at 31st March 2025 is attached as 
appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3.4 The QAIP also includes the 5 recommendations arising from the External Assessment 

of Internal Audit against the Standards and details the progress with those 
recommendations. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Ensuring that a QAIP is in place is a requirement of the Standards and failure to have 

this in place could lead to overall non-conformance with the Standards. 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on the QAIP, which is attached to this 

report. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are legal or human rights implications 
arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during 
the audit process itself, there is no direct 
risk implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications  

Page 58



Page 3 of 3 
 

A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

A Customer First Analysis is not required as 
the QAIP is not setting new policy for the 
audit function or Council. This document 
demonstrates elements required with the 
PSIAS. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit – Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme 

 

Quality Assurance Issues for Conformance with the Standards         APPENDIX 1 

 

Area of Consideration Comment / Evidence Action / Responsibility / Timescale 
Is there a quality assurance process in place to 
manage and maintain on-going development of 
internal audit? 

A formal assessment process exists and includes 
views of the auditee on completion of the work. This 
feeds in to the on-going review and development on 
the service including any issues that could highlight 
potential training needs for team members. This is 
managed by the Head of Audit & Investigations. 

The process is subject to review in its own right to 
ensure that it continues to meet the needs of the 
service and standards. 
 
Head of Audit & Investigations 
 
On-going – regularly monitored and updated 

Has a self-assessment of the standards been carried 
out by a qualified competent person?  

The Head of Audit & Investigations carried out the 
self-assessment and is appropriately experienced 
and is qualified to do so. 

The self-assessment is subject to annual review to 
ensure any changes in circumstances are identified 
and reflected in the QAIP. 
 
Head of Audit & Investigations 
 
Next review to be completed by March 2025 

Has an external assessment of the standards been 
carried out by a qualified competent person(s)? 

Yes, during November 2022. This will next be 
reviewed by November 2027 to comply with the 5 
year mandatory timescale. 

The standards must be externally assessed at least 
once every 5 years. See improvement programme 
below for details. 

 

 

Elements of Standards that are Partially Compliant or Not Yet Compliant – Improvement Programme 

 

PSIAs Ref Conformance with the 
Standard 

Y P N Comment / Evidence Action / 
Responsibility / 

Timescale 

Status Update 

1000 
Remit 

In accordance with best practice, 
internal audit staff should formally 
acknowledge acceptance of the 
Internal Code of Ethics periodically 

Y   This hadn’t been the case 
but was a recommendation 
within the 2022 External 
Assessment report. The 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations has revised 

Head of Audit & 
Investigations. 

Closed 
This will be 
monitored by the 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations. 
This is 

 

P
age 61



the process and all 
members of the Team are 
now signing to include the 
Code of Ethics and not just 
conflicts of interest. 

recommendation 1 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2022. 

1000 
Purpose and 
Positioning 

Consideration should be given to 
implementing the suggested best 
practice for Audit Committees set out 
in the CIPFA Position Statement 
(2022). This includes ensuring that the 
Committee meet at least four times a 
year and are supported by two 
independent members. 

 P  The number of times the 
Committee meets has been 
increased from 3 to 4 times 
per year from 2023/24 
onwards. 
The Head of Audit & 
Investigations is exploring 
the issue of Independent 
Members of Audit 
Committee with the 
Committee, Management 
and Member Services. 

Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with Audit 
Committee, Management 
and Member Services 

Open 
This is partially 
complete and work 
continues regarding 
part of this 
recommendation 
This is 
recommendation 2 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2022. 

1000 
Purpose and 
Positioning 

Is feedback sought from the chair of 
the audit committee for the CAE’s 
performance appraisal? 

Y   This hadn’t been the case 
but was a recommendation 
within the External 
Assessment report. 
Following discussions with 
the Deputy Chief Executive 
comment is sought from 
the Chair of Audit 
Committee as part of the 
PDR process. 

The Chair and Audit 
Committee is invited to 
make comment on an 
annual basis at the time of 
the PDR. It must also be 
remembered that the Chair 
and the Audit Committee 
has the ability to comment 
about performance as and 
when they see fit – 
however, this sits outside 
the PDR programme. 

Closed 
This will be 
monitored by the 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations. 
This is 
recommendation 1 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2018. 

1100 Where there could be a perceived 
conflict of interest, consideration 
should be given to developing a 
reciprocal arrangement with another 
local authority to carry out the review. 

 P  This has been discussed at 
the Lancashire Chief Audit 
Executives meeting and the 
theory for this does exist 
within the Lancaashire 
setting. However, this 
remains partial as no 
formalised written 
agreements are in place at 
this stage. 

Head of Audit 
Investigations. 

Open 
The head of Audit & 
Investigations will 
continue to 
investigate this 
further. 
This is 
recommendation 3 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2022. 

3.2 Is feedback sought from the chair of Y   This hadn’t been the case The Chair and Audit Closed 

P
age 62



1100 the audit committee for the CAE’s 
performance appraisal? 

but was a recommendation 
within the External 
Assessment report. 
Following discussions with 
the Deputy Chief Executive 
comment is sought from 
the Chair of Audit 
Committee as part of the 
PDR process. 

Committee is invited to 
make comment on an 
annual basis at the time of 
the PDR. It must also be 
remembered that the Chair 
and the Audit Committee 
has the ability to comment 
about performance as and 
when they see fit – 
however, this sits outside 
the PDR programme. 

This will be 
monitored by the 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations. 
This was also 
highlighted in the 
February 2018 
External Peer 
Review as 
Recommendation 1. 
Adoption of this 
change to process 
addresses this 
recommendation. 

1110 
Independence 

If there has been any real or apparent 
impairment of independence or 
objectivity, has this been disclosed to 
appropriate parties? 

  N This has NOT occurred and 
should never be yes in 
order to be in conformance. 
However, it is included here 
as it shows as no which 
infers we do not comply on 
this point. If it was to occur 
it would be disclosed to the 
appropriate parties. 

No action necessary – see 
comment. 

Closed 
This will continue to 
be monitored but 
should remain as 
no, which shows 
conformance. 

3.2 
1130 

Have internal auditors assessed 
specific operations for which they have 
been responsible within the previous 
year? 

  N This should never be yes in 
order to be in conformance. 
However, it is included here 
as it shows as no which 
infers we do not comply on 
this point. 

No action necessary – see 
comment. 

Closed 
This will continue to 
be monitored but 
should remain as 
no, which shows 
conformance. 

3.2 
1130 

Have any instances been discovered 
where an internal auditor has used 
information obtained during the course 
of duties for personal gain? 

  N This should never be yes in 
order to be in conformance. 
However, it is included here 
as it shows as no which 
infers we do not comply on 
this point. 

No action necessary – see 
comment. 

Closed 
This will continue to 
be monitored but 
should remain as 
no, which shows 
conformance. 

1210 
Technical, 
Training and 
Development 

Following the self-assessment of Audit 
Committee effectiveness consideration 
should be given to developing a more 
structured training programme to help 
ensure that members have appropriate 
skills and knowledge to challenge and 

Y   The External Review Team 
identified that there could 
be a more defined training 
programme for Audit 
Committee Members which 
would link to best practice 

Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with Audit 
Committee and Other 
Senior Officers involved in 
Training Delivery 

Closed 
A programme of 
training was created 
in conjunction with 
Audit Committee, 
delivered in 

P
age 63



consider the work of internal audit.  and strengthen the skills of 
the Committee. The 
External Review Team 
recognised that there have 
been numerous training 
events for Audit Committee 
Members but these are not 
in some form of structure. 

 
 

2023/24, included 
members outside 
Audit Committee 
too and will be 
ongoing. 
This is 
recommendation 5 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2022. 

3.3 
1210 

Does the CAE ensure that up-to-date 
job descriptions exist that reflect roles 
and responsibilities and that person 
specifications define the required 
qualifications, competencies, skills, 
experience and personal attributes?  

Y   The External Review Team 
identified that although 
internal audit’s job 
descriptions did reflect 
most of the current roles 
and responsibilities and 
person specifications, it has 
not been updated to reflect 
the mandatory role of the 
PSIAS in delivery of audits. 
Following the external 
review all of the team job 
descriptions have been 
fully reviewed and updated. 

The Audit Team JD’s & 
Person Specifications have 
been updated and subject 
to re-evaluation under job-
evaluation. 
 
 

Closed 
This is 
recommendation 2 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2018. The 
review, updating 
and re-evaluation of 
the team job 
descriptions 
address this 
recommendation. 

3.4 
1300 

Has the CAE developed a Quality 
Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) that covers all 
aspects of the internal audit activity 
and enables conformance with all 
aspects of the PSIAs to be evaluated  

Y   The Head of Audit & 
Investigations has 
developed both QAIP and 
monitoring ethos for it. 

The initial QAIP and 
background surrounding it 
are discussed annually at 
Audit Committee 
 
The Head of Audit & 
Investigations monitors the 
QAIP together with the 
PSIAs as a whole. 
 
Updates of this on-going 
review will be brought to 
Audit Committee at least 
once each financial year. 

Open 
The status remains 
open because it is 
subject to annual 
review. 

3.4 
1300 

Does the QAIP include both internal 
and external assessments? 

Y   Following completion of the 
External Peer Review 
process and inspection of 

An External Assessment 
was completed in February 
2018. 

Closed 
This will remain on 
the QAIP as failure 

P
age 64



Internal Audit’s conformity 
with the Standards this can 
now be moved from ‘P’ to 
‘Y’. 
 

 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations 
 
The next External 
Assessment of Internal 
Audit against the Standards 
must take place in the 5 
year period 1

st
 April 2018 to 

31
st
 March 2023. 

Provisional Date of 
November 2022 has been 
set. 
 

to complete the next 
External 
Assessment after 
31/03/23 would then 
mean non-
compliance. 

3.4 
1311 

Are the periodic self-assessments or 
assessments carried out by people 
external to the internal audit activity 
undertaken by those with a sufficient 
knowledge of internal audit practices 

Y   Internal self-assessments 
have taken place. The 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations is qualified to 
carry out such a self-
assessment. Now that an 
External Assessment has 
taken place in February 
2018 this can now be 
moved from ‘P’ to ‘Y’. 

Internal self-assessment 
subject to on-going review. 
External assessment took 
place February 2018. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations 
 
The next External 
Assessment of Internal 
Audit against the Standards 
must take place in the 5 
year period 1

st
 April 2018 to 

31
st
 March 2023. 

Provisional Date of 
November 2022 has been 
set. 

Closed 
This has now been 
achieved as at 
February 2018. 

3.4 
1312 

Has the CAE discussed the proposed 
form of the external assessment and 
the qualifications and independence of 
the assessor or assessment team with 
the board 

Y   Additional information was 
provided to Management 
and Audit Committee prior 
to the External Assessment 
in February 2018. 
Therefore this is no longer 
‘P’ and is now ‘Y’. 
This will be repeated for the 
next assessment. 

Updates were presented to 
Management and the Board 
(i.e. Audit Committee). 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with Deputy 
Chief Executive 
 
The next External 

Closed 
Reports and 
discussions held 
with both 
Management Team 
and Audit 
Committee prior to 
the actual review. 

P
age 65



Assessment of Internal 
Audit against the Standards 
must take place in the 5 
year period 1

st
 April 2018 to 

31
st
 March 2023. 

Provisional Date of 
November 2022 has been 
set. 

3.4 
1312 

Has the CAE agreed the scope of the 
external assessment with an 
appropriate sponsor, such as the Chair 
of the Audit Committee, the CFO or 
the Chief Executive? 

Y   This was discussed with 
Corporate Management 
Team and the Deputy Chief 
Executive was the Sponsor 
and both Corporate 
Management Team and 
Audit Committee were 
briefed on the process, 
format and scope of the 
review. This can now move 
from ‘N’ to ‘Y’. 

The Deputy Chief Executive 
was sponsor for the 
External Review. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with Deputy 
Chief Executive. 
 
Review completed 
February 2018 
 
The next External 
Assessment of Internal 
Audit against the Standards 
must take place in the 5 
year period 1

st
 April 2018 to 

31
st
 March 2023. 

Provisional Date of 
November 2022 has been 
set. 

Closed 
This is now 
compliant. 

3.4 
1312 

Has the CAE agreed the scope of the 
external assessment with the external 
assessor or assessment team? 

Y   The format of the 
assessment has been 
agreed by all the 
participating Authorities 
involved in the Peer 
Review assessment 
process. This was then 
also agreed with the 
External Assessment Team 
prior to the review. 
This can now move from ‘P’ 
to ‘Y’. 

The format of the 
assessment was agreed 
and delivered by the 
External Review in 
February 2018. 
 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with External 
Review Team. 
 

Closed 
This is now 
compliant 

P
age 66



The process has been 
reviewed and agreed with 
the Lancashire Heads of 
Audit participating in the 
latest external reviews 
taking place prior to 
31/03/23. 

3.4 
1320 

Has the CAE reported the results of 
the QAIP to Senior Management and 
the Board? 

Y   The PSIAS require certain 
documents produced by 
internal audit to be 
presented to ‘senior 
management’ and the 
‘board’ which in Hyndburn’s 
case would be the 
Corporate Management 
Team and Audit 
Committee. Whilst the key 
documents referred to in 
the Standards exist, and 
most are presented to both 
Corporate Management 
Team and Audit 
Committee, the Quality 
Assurance and 
Improvement Programme 
(QAIP) has not formally 
been to Corporate 
Management Team. This 
should be addressed to 
ensure continued 
conformity with the 
Standards going forward. 

This would appear to have 
been an oversight and will 
in future also be presented 
to Management Team. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with Corporate 
Management Team. 
 
 

Closed 
This is 
recommendation 3 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2018. 
Ensuring that the 
QAIP is also 
reported to 
Corporate 
Management Team 
addresses this 
recommendation. 
 
Process in place to 
ensure the QAIP is 
reported to Senior 
Management. 

2050 
Other 
Assurance 
Providers 

Does the risk-based plan include the 
approach to using other sources of 
assurance and any work that may be 
required to place reliance upon those 
resources? 

 P  The audit planning process 
at Hyndburn includes steps 
to consider other sources 
of assurance. Preparation 
of the plan should include 
mapping of assurances to 
determine the approach to 
using other sources of 
assurance, if they are 

Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with the Senior 
Auditor and all Heads of 
Service 
 
Ongoing 

Open 
This will remain 
partial for now to 
ensure that these 
processes are 
embedded. 
This is 
recommendation 4 
of the External 

P
age 67



determined as suitable. 
The lack of a formal 
approach to mapping these 
assurances can lead to not 
all sources being identified 
or formally considered. The 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations was able to 
include additional 
assurance sources in 
2023/24 

Review of Internal 
Audit 2022. 
 

4.3 
2210 

Have internal auditors carried out a 
preliminary risk assessment of the 
activity under review? 

 P  Consideration is given to 
known risks published 
within the risk registers and 
risks affecting the area are 
discussed with the auditee. 
However this is currently 
not in a formal risk 
assessment document. 

This is partially compliant 
as risk is always considered 
as part of the audit 
engagement, however, the 
recording process will be 
reviewed and updated to 
better reflect this. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with the Senior 
Auditor 
 
Complete by 31 March 
2025 

Open 
This will be 
addressed by the 
review of process 
and documentation 
being carried out by 
the Head of Audit & 
Investigations and 
the Senior Auditor 

4.3 
2210 

Do the engagement objectives reflect 
the results of the preliminary risk 
assessment that has been carried out? 

 P  The engagement objectives 
do take into consideration 
the risk issues but this 
process is not shown in a 
formal risk assessment 
document. 

This is partially compliant 
as risk is always considered 
as part of the audit 
engagement, however, the 
recording process will be 
reviewed and updated to 
better reflect this. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with the Senior 
Auditor 
 
This is under review and 
will be updated in 2024/25 

Open 
This will be 
addressed by the 
review of process 
and documentation 
being carried out by 
the Head of Audit & 
Investigations and 
the Senior Auditor 

P
age 68



4.3 
2210 

If the value for money criteria has 
been referred to, has the use of all the 
organisation’s main types of resources 
been considered including money, 
people and assets? 

 P  Consideration is given to 
the varying types of 
resources where applicable 
in an audit engagement but 
this may not be a formal 
value for money review. 

This would be included if a 
value for money review. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with the Senior 
Auditor. 
 
On-going 

Open 
This will remain 
outstanding and will 
be monitored by the 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations. 

4.3 
2240 

Were work programmes approved 
prior to implementation for each 
engagement? 

Y   One element of the PSIAS 
requires that work 
programmes for 
engagements are approved 
prior to use. The Head of 
Audit & Investigations has 
a process for this and this 
was identified as in place 
during testing. Further 
testing identified that this 
was not applied 
consistently. This should be 
applied to all engagements. 

Work has been carried out 
on streamlining Internal 
Audit processes and the 
need for this to be achieved 
has been previously 
highlighted – however, the 
Team will relook at this, 
amend processes 
accordingly. 
 
Head of Audit & 
Investigations in 
conjunction with the Audit 
Team. 
 
On-going 

Open 
This is 
recommendation 4 
of the External 
Review of Internal 
Audit 2018. 
The Head of Audit & 
Investigations 
believes this 
recommendation to 
have been 
addressed but will 
continue to monitor 
to ensure this 
remains the case. 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	Minutes

	3. Risk Management Monitoring Report
	4. Annual Internal Audit Report & Opinion
	Annual Audit Report 2024-25 appendix

	5. Internal Audit Plan Progress Update
	6. Follow Ups Update
	7. Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme
	QAIP 2024-25


